APPROVED MINUTES
PLANNING COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING
CITY OF WYOMING, MINNESOTA
OCTOBER 23, 2018
7:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER:

Planning Commission Chairman Lobermeier called the Regular Meeting of the Wyoming Planning
Commission of October 23, 2018 to order at 7:00 P.M.

CALL OF ROLL:
On a Call of the Roll the following members of the Wyoming Planning Commission were present:
Judy Coughlin, Mark Lobermeier, Bryan Murdock, and Joel Ericson.

Members Absent: Dennis Schilling.

Also Present: Zoning Administrator Fred Weck.

DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM:

Chairman Lobermeier determined a quorum was present.
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

OPEN FORUM:

“An opportunity for members of the public to address the Planning Commission on items not on the
current Agenda. Items requiring Planning Commission action maybe deferred to staff for research
and future Planning Commission Agendas if appropriate.”

No members of the public spoke.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

1. Consider approving the minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Wyoming,
Minnesota Planning Commission for September 25, 2018.

Commissioner Coughlin noted a typo on page 4, bottom of the page, it should state “they are
already” rather than “they area.”

Chair Lobermeier stated that he had one item on page one under Determination of a Quorum that
stated “Chair Engstrom” and should be “Chair Lobermeier”.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER COUGHLIN, SECONDED BY
PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER MURDOCK, TO APPROVE THE “REGULAR MEETING”
MINUTES OF THE WYOMING, MINNESOTA PLANNING COMMISSION FOR SEPTEMBER 25,
2018, AS AMENDED.

Voting Aye:  Coughlin, Murdock, Ericson and Lobermeier
Voting Nay:  None

Abstain: None

Absent: Schilling

SCHEDULED PUBLIC HEARINGS:



2. D-18-006 Preliminary Plat “Shore View One”
Rock Builder’s LLC and Gregg Radefeldt
PID R21.10854.02

Zoning Administrator Weck noted that regarding number one on the staff recommendation, he did
go out and there will need to be an adjustment to Lot 1 to make sure they don'’t cross the drainage
easement. He stated that he is concerned about Lot 2 and making sure the septic area isn’t impacted
during the construction of the home. He stated that because he was out sick he wasn’t able to
answer the applicant questions regarding parkland dedication. He stated that the parkland dedication
would just be required on the new lot because the parkland dedication was already paid on the first
lot 20 years ago.

Bob Muske, stated that he was here representing Gregg Radefeldt. He stated that he had read the
staff report and believes the septic encroachment is over by about 400 square feet and can be
tweaked to meet the requirements.

Commissioner Coughlin asked if the lots would be developed.
Mr. Muske explained that their intent is to create two lots for two single family homes.

Commissioner Coughlin reiterated Zoning Administrator Weck’s concern about the septic location
and noted that they will have to be extremely careful that they do not impact the soils in that area on
the second lot. She asked if the septic site could be moved so it isn’t in the way while the home is
being built.

Mr. Muske stated the soil engineers and the surveyors have told him there are a few options

Chair Lobermeier suggested that the proposed driveway be pushed to the north to help things work
a little bit better with the septic location.

Chairman Lobermeier opened the Public Hearing at 7:07 p.m.

Charles Realt, 25453 West Comfort Drive, stated that he lives next to Lot 2 and he has no objections
to the driveway in the current location. He asked if the house pad included the garage and noted
that he thinks the house pads are too small.

There being no further comments, Chair Lobermeier closed the Public Hearing at 7:09 p.m.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that with the house pad sizes being rather small, she asked if it was
possible to move the septic to the west.

Zoning Administrator Weck noted that they could because the property line setback for septic is only
10 feet.

Chair Lobermeier noted that in terms of regulated placement of the house and the low floor, it will be
dictated by the highest known water level and not the ordinary high-water level. He stated that he
had noticed that the staff report included language that encouraged the applicant to use best
management practices for stable shoreline and shoreline management standards. He stated that
erosion control and the attention to proper shoreline protection is definitely warranted in this situation.
He stated that perhaps something stronger than the word “encourage” should be used.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that the applicant currently has permits from the watershed for the
work that was completed without permitting but he hasn’t seen the restoration order from the DNR.



He stated that when the homes are built they will need separate permits from the watershed for
erosion control.

Commissioner Murdock asked if this area was farmed in the past.
Zoning Administrator Weck stated that it was farmed in the past.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER ERICSON, SECONDED BY
PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER MURDOCK, TO RECOMMEND THAT THE CITY COUNCIL
APPROVE D-18-006 PRELIMINARY PLAT, “SHORE VIEW ONE”, ROCK BUILDERS, LLC AND
GREGG RADEFELDT, GILBERT INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, PID R21.10854.02, SUBJECT TO
THE CONDITIONS LISTED IN THE STAFF REPORT AND THAT CONDITION NUMBER TWO
SHOULD STATE PRELIMINARY PLAT, NOT FINAL PLAT.

Voting Aye:  Coughlin, Murdock, Ericson, and Lobermeier.
Voting Nay:  None

Abstain: None

Absent: Schilling

NEW BUSINESS:

3. D-18-007 Sketch Plan: Donald Steinke
Arliss R Banta Estate
PID R21.10640.00

Donald Steinke stated that he was looking for some help from the Planning Commission and that he
is scheduled to close on this property in one week. He explained that he has known the Banta family
for a long time and has farmed the land for 40 years. He stated that he is not looking to develop the
property but would like to sell off the building site and 20 acres to an individual and another 20 acres
to the south to the watershed district. He stated that the driveway is 3/10 of a mile and if sold will
create a landlocked parcel. He stated that nothing will change regarding the use of the property
because there will still be one family living the house and he will still be farming the land. He stated
that he plans to give an easement to use the driveway. He stated that he thinks it may be possible
after he dies that his son may want to do something different with the land since he lives in Fairmont
but until that time it will be not developed. He explained that he owns 80 acres in Columbus that he
has put into a land trust so it can never be developed and stated that he was in the farming business,
not development. He stated that he currently farms about 800 acres.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that the sketch plan being presented is clearly not what he actually
wants to do.

Mr. Steinke agreed and stated that Zoning Administrator Weck had suggested that something
needed to be done to show what could happen in the future.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that in looking at what Mr. Steinke would like to do she is wondering
if there is a process that could be done that doesn’t include the sketch plan, preliminary plat and final
plat stages and rezoning. She asked if the 20 acres that were sold off needed to be to the north and
south and if they could be to the east and west.

Mr. Steinke stated that there is an aerial photo that shows the home area is mostly swamp land and
noted the location of the farm area, which is why the 20 acres was divided like it has been.

Zoning Administrator explained that selling the parcel to the watershed could be done without any
administrative work. He stated that he could also split off the other 20-acre parcel if both parcels had



500 feet of road frontage which is the issue because the home parcel does not have road frontage.
He stated that if Mr. Steinke builds a road, it will destroy his farm area.

Commissioner Coughlin asked if it may be possible to put in a cul-de-sac to solve the problem.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that it would require a variance because of its length, but would
still need to comply with public right-of-way requirements.

Commissioner Murdock stated that perhaps it would be possible to just lease or rent the homestead
piece because then nothing would change.

Mr. Steinke stated that he agrees he could lease the property out but was looking for a more
economically feasible way to do this project by selling that portion. He stated that building a road
makes no sense for him since it has served as a driveway for the Banta family for over 100 years.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that the City has seen a sketch plan from Maranatha and there
may be a future road tie in, which could cause a problem if it is not a public roadway.

Mr. Steinke questioned why both parties couldn’t just wait until they needed the road put in and then
talk about connecting the roads between his property and Maranatha.

Chair Lobermeier stated that he feels that Mr. Steinke has a few options such as holding off on the
sale of the 20-acre parcel. He stated that this area is zoned mixed use and may eventually have a
more intensive use. He stated that the purpose of a sketch plan is to give and get ideas from the
Commission about what can be done. He suggested that Mr. Steinke spend some time with Zoning
Administrator Weck and try to work through some alternatives.

Commissioner Coughlin asked if Mr. Steinke felt he needed to sell the 20-acre parcel with the home
on it right away.

Mr. Steinke stated that was certainly his plan because he has borrowed a lot of money to buy the
property. He explained that it will not be economically feasible to farm the land without getting some
cash flow back. He stated that the watershed purchase of the other parcel will probably move slowly
because they are a government agency. He stated that there is a buyer already lined up that wants
to buy the house and the 20-acre parcel. He asked if there was anyway to just leave it the way it is
and have him give the City the 66-foot-wide right-of-way for future use, when it is needed.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that he had spoken with the City Attorney and he stated that the
proposal was premature and not ready to be looked at.

Chair Lobermeier asked if there was a way to connect to the 20-acre parcel with the 66-foot right-of-
way strip.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that would create what is called a “flag lot” which is prohibited in
the City.

OLD BUSINESS
4. None.
COMMUNICATIONS:

5. None.



UPDATES:

6. None.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER COUGHLIN, SECONDED BY
PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER ERICSON, TO ADJOURN THE REGULAR MEETING OF
THE WYOMING, MINNESOTA PLANNING COMMISSION FOR OCTOBER 23, 2018 AT 7:41 P.M.

Voting Aye:  Coughlin, Murdock, Ericson, and Lobermeier
Voting Nay:  None

Abstain: None

Absent:: Schilling



